1990

Kamdar & Company v. Laray Company, Inc.; Raymond Boal; and James A. Boal Jr. : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION

This matter was initially appealed to the Utah Supreme Court pursuant to the provisions of the Utah Code Ann. § 78-2-2(3)(j) (1953 as amended) in that the appeal was taken from a final order of the Fourth Judicial District Court over which the Utah Court of Appeals does not have original appellate jurisdiction. See Rules 3 and 4, Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure. On or about November 1, 1990, this matter was assigned to the Utah Court of Appeals by the Utah Supreme Court pursuant to Rule 42, Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

NATURE OF PROCEEDING

This is an appeal from an Order of Dismissal for Lack of Jurisdiction by the Fourth Judicial District Court.

STATEMENT OF ISSUE

The following is the sole issue presented by this appeal, expressed in terms and circumstances of the case, but without unnecessary detail:

Whether the Fourth Judicial District Court (the "District Court") has specific personal jurisdiction over the appellees to resolve a dispute over the payment of fees for accounting and financial services rendered by the appellants for the benefit of the appellees. These services were rendered by the appellant, located in Utah, pursuant to an oral contract with the appellees, located in California. The appellant performed similar services in Utah for the appellees for 18 years. No services were ever performed for the appellees by the appellants in California. Instead, for over 18 years the appellees would send or otherwise have delivered to appellant in Utah all their accounting and financial reports, records and other documentation necessary for the appellant to perform various accounting services and then send the resulting work product to the appellees in California.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

As a standard of appellate review, this issue is subject to review under the "correction of error" standard as the District

Court's decision was based solely on the pleadings filed in the case and involved no assessment of witness credibility or competency. See T.R.F. v. Felan, 760 P.2d 906, 909 (Utah Ct. App. 1988). Thus, this Court is in "as good as position as the trial court to examine the evidence de novo and determine the facts." In re Adoption of Infant Anonymous, 760 P.2d 916,918 (Utah Ct. App. 1988).

STATEMENT OF STATUTES

The interpretation of Utah's Long-Arm Statute may be necessary in the resolution of this issue:

It is declared, as a matter of legislative determination, that the public interest demands the state provide its citizens with an effective means of redress against nonresident persons who, through certain significant minimal contacts with the state, incur obligations to citizens entitled to the state's protection. This legislative action is deemed necessary because of technological progress which has substantially increased the flow of commerce between several states resulting in increased interaction between persons of this state and persons of other states.

The provisions of this act, to ensure maximum protection to citizens of this state, should be applied so as to assert jurisdiction over nonresident defendants to the fullest extent permitted by the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution.

Utah Code Ann. § 78-27-22 (1953 as amended).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On January 29, 1990, appellant Kamdar & Company filed a complaint against the appellees in the Fourth Judicial District Court in the State of Utah to recover \$24,336.00 for unpaid

accounting and financial services. In response, on April 13, 1990, the appellees filed a Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction. This Motion was granted on July 12, 1990 on the basis that the District Court lacked either specific or general personal jurisdiction over the appellees. On August 24, 1990, appellant Kamdar & Company filed its Notice of Appeal.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS¹

1. Appellant Kamdar & Company is a Utah partnership, that has operated as an accounting and financial counselling business within the State of Utah since 1971. (See R. 1 & 77; Exhibit "A" at ¶ 3; Exhibit "C" at ¶ 1).

2. Appellee Laray Company, Inc. ("Laray Company") is a California corporation. (See R. 1, 2, 46, 47, 49 & 50; Exhibit "C" at ¶ 2).

3. Appellees Raymond Boal and James A. Boal, Jr., are or have been the principle officers and shareholders of Laray

¹ For purposes of this appeal, the following pleadings or other documentation, all of which comprise the underlying record on appeal, are attached hereto as exhibits and will be utilized and referred to as follows:

1. Affidavit of Vin Kamdar, filed in the District Court on May 14, 1990, as Exhibit "A";

2. Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Opposition to Defendants' Motion to Dismiss, filed in the District Court on April 25, 1990, as Exhibit "B"; and

3. Complaint filed in the District Court on January 29, 1990, as Exhibit "C".

Company and are both individuals residing in the State of California. (See R. 2, 46, 47, 49 & 50; Exhibit "C" at ¶¶ 3 & 4).

4. In or about 1971, James A. Boal, Jr., as president of Laray Company, then a sole proprietorship, contacted Vin Kamdar, regarding the desire to have him perform on-going accounting and financial services for him and his company. (See R. 47, 48, 50, 51, 76 & 77; Exhibit "A" at ¶ 2). During that initial meeting, Mr. Kamdar informed Mr. Boal that he was relocating his business to Utah, but would be willing to perform the accounting services sought by Laray Company and Mr. Boal, in Utah. The parties agreed to this arrangement. (See R. 76 & 77; Exhibit "A" at ¶ 2).

5. Accordingly, in or about 1971, Kamdar & Company, after moving to Utah, commenced performing diverse accounting and financial services to Laray Company and James A. Boal, Jr., from Utah and sent it's work product, including reports, returns, statements and comparisons to Laray Company and James A. Boal, Jr., in California. (See R. 77; Exhibit "B" at ¶ 3). No accounting or financial services were ever performed by Kamdar & Company for the appellees in California. (See R. 3, 77 & 78; Exhibit "A" at ¶¶ 5 & 7; Exhibit "C" at ¶ 9).

6. Laray Company and Mr. Boal were billed for these accounting and financial services by Kamdar & Company annually. As a result, Laray Company and Mr. Boal's payments to Kamdar & Company would always be one year in arrears. (See R. 78 & 79; Exhibit "A" at ¶ 8).

7. Commencing in or about 1974, Raymond Boal (the son of James A. Boal) contacted Kamdar & Company in Utah and requested that it begin performing various additional personal accounting and financial services for him, including, but not limited to advising him on real estate transactions, tax planning and personal financing. These services were similarly performed in Utah with the resulting work product being sent to California. (See R. 77; Exhibit "A" at ¶ 4).

8. From 1971 and continuing uninterrupted for the next 18 years, Kamdar & Company rendered virtually all of the appellees' accounting and financial advising needs, including, but not limited to the preparation of corporate and personal tax returns, bank summary reports, industry comparisons, corporate financial statements, comparative financial statements, monthly general ledger reports and consultation on investment, management, real estate and banking matters. During this entire time all of these services were performed in Utah with resulting work product sent to the appellees in California. Kamdar & Company never performed

any accounting or other financial services for the appellees at any time in California. The appellees always paid for these services on an annual basis until the present dispute arose. (See R. 62, 64, 65 & 78; Exhibit "A" at ¶ 7; Exhibit "B" at pp. 7, 9 & 10).

9. In order for Kamdar & Company to render the services noted above, it was required that the appellees deliver to Kamdar & Company in Utah all of their financial books and records, including, but not limited to all check stubs, payroll reports, monthly sales reports, copies of all loan documents and all other tax documents. (See R. 62, 64, 65 & 77; Exhibit "A" at ¶ 5; Exhibit "B" at pp. 7, 9 & 10).

10. Additionally, throughout the 18 year employment relationship between the parties, the appellees corresponded by mail and telephone from California on countless occasions with Kamdar & Company in Utah regarding the performance of these various accounting and financial responsibilities. (See R. 62, 64, 65 & 78; Exhibit "A" at ¶ 6; Exhibit "B" at pp. 7, 9 & 10).

11. The instant dispute arose when the appellees refused, after repeated demands, to pay for services rendered by Kamdar & Company during the final year that Kamdar & Company worked for the appellees. (See R. 79 & 80; Exhibit "B" at ¶ 8). This final amount due includes fees for both corporate and personal tax and

financial advice and services rendered by Kamdar & Company. (See R. 80; Exhibit "B" at ¶ 9).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Each requirement is fully met to invoke specific personal jurisdiction under Utah's Long-Arm Statute over the appellees. First, the fact that the appellees hired appellants to perform exclusively in Utah various accounting and financial services for their benefit for over 18 years and indisputably affected business and persons within the State of Utah pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 78-27-24(1) (1953, as amended). Second, this very activity is the conduct on which the present claims arise. Finally, the appellees chose to use the appellant, a Utah company, to do their accounting and other financial needs for 18 years on an annual basis, coupled with their refusal to pay for these services justifies a finding based on all notions of fairness and substantial justice that the appellees come to Utah to explain why they so refuse to pay the appellant, a Utah company. The District Court does have specific personal jurisdiction over the appellees.

ARGUMENT

This appeal has been filed to seek review of the District Court's ruling that it lacked specific personal jurisdiction over the appellees. The District Court's ruling is inapposite to both

the uncontroverted facts and applicable law. As will be discussed herein, the District Court does have specific personal jurisdiction over the appellees.

A. The Requirements To Establish Specific Personal Jurisdiction Are Distinctive From Those To Establish General Personal Jurisdiction.

The issue of whether the District Court has jurisdiction over the appellees rests with the preliminary distinction between "general" and "specific" personal jurisdiction. The appellant asserts that specific personal jurisdiction exists over the appellees under Utah's Long-Arm Statute. The appellant has not asserted that general jurisdiction exists based upon the appellees doing business in Utah. This distinction is critical. This point, the appellees eventually conceded. (See R. 68; But cf. R. 33-41).

The distinction between general and specific personal jurisdiction has been fully embraced by the Utah courts.² As

² Earlier Utah case law that failed to make this distinction has been effectively abandoned. This point was recently addressed by the United States District Court for the District of Utah in Nova Mud Corp. v. Fletcher, 648 F.Supp. 1123 (D. Utah 1986). In Nova Mud, the court found that under current Utah law, the courts have "rejected its [the Utah courts] prior statements that any distinction between 'doing business' and 'minimum contact' was semantic rather than substantive." Id. at 1125. The court continued:

By making that recognition, the Utah court brought into question a number of prior precedents which essentially applied the 'doing business' test even with the long-arm

discussed in Abbott G.M. Diesel, Inc. v. Piper Aircraft Corp.,
578 P.2d 850, 853 n.6 (Utah 1978):

General personal jurisdiction is the concept reflected in a doing business statute, which requires substantial and continued local activity; specific personal jurisdiction is the concept applicable to a long-arm statute, which requires only minimum local contacts. . . . Where a defendant's forum-state activity is extensive, the forum may assert personal jurisdiction on either related or unrelated claims (doing business concept). Where the defendant has only minimum contacts with the forum, personal jurisdiction may be asserted only on claims arising out of the defendant's forum-state activity (long-arm or transaction of business concept).

Appellant does not attempt (nor need it attempt do so) to establish that the appellees have had substantial and continuous activity within Utah to invoke the court's general jurisdiction. (See R. 37-41). Rather, appellant has always maintained that the

statute was asserted as the basis for invoking jurisdiction. In any event, it is clear that the Utah court now adheres to the Utah legislature's mandate that standards be no more restrictive than those under federal due process limitations.

Id.

The Nova Mud court even pointed out some of these now obsolete opinions. These included Union Ski Co. v. Union Plastics Corp., 548 P.2d 1257 (Utah 1976) and Cate Rental Co. v. Whalen & Co., 549 P.2d 707 (Utah 1976). See Nova Mud Corp. v. Fletcher, supra, 648 F.Supp. at 1125 n.1. These two cases are two of the three central cases cited by the appellees in their attempt to attack the District Court's jurisdictional authority. The third case White v. Arthur Murray, Inc., 549 P.2d 439 (Utah 1976) suffers from the same now rejected premise. (See R. 37-39).

factual realities of the present case confers on the District Court specific personal jurisdiction over the case.

This is evidenced by several unopposed operative facts, including: (1) the initial oral contract entered into between the parties in 1971 included the understanding that all the services would all be performed in Utah (See Statement of the Facts (the "Facts") at ¶ 4); (2) the appellant performed these requested accounting and financing services in Utah for 18 years for the appellees (See Facts at ¶¶ 5 & 8); (3) the oral agreement to do these services was renewed or terminable each year, thereby making the fees that are owing in the present case an oral contractual arrangement entered into between the appellees, in California, and Kamdar & Company, in Utah (See Facts at ¶ 6); and (4) the present case is based on the collection of these very fees that comprises the appellees contacts with the State of Utah (See Facts at ¶ 11). None of these facts have been controverted by the appellees. These facts undisputable establish a prima facie showing that the District Court has specific personal jurisdiction over the resolution of the payment for these very services. See Anderson v. American Society of Plastic Surgeons, 148 Utah Adv. Rep. 3 (November 15, 1990).

B. Specific Personal Jurisdiction Over The Appellees Based On Utah's Long-Arm Statute.

The governing statutory law over this issue is Utah's Long-Arm Statute. See Utah Code Ann. §§ 78-27-22 et seq. (1953, as amended). The scope and purpose of this statute has been codified in section 78-27-22 of the Utah Code, which, in pertinent part, provides:

It is declared, as a matter of legislative determination, that the public interest demands the state provide its citizens with an effective means of redress against nonresident persons who, through certain significant minimal contacts with the state, incur obligations to citizens entitled to the state's protection. . .

The provisions of this act, to ensure maximum protection to citizens of this state, should be applied so as to assert jurisdiction over nonresident Appellees to the fullest extent permitted by the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution.

(Emphasis added.)

The Utah courts have consistently complied with this policy declaration and have given themselves jurisdiction to the fullest extent allowed under the due process of law. See, e.g., Parry v. Ernst Home Center Corp., 779 P.2d 659, 661 (Utah 1989); Synergetics v. Marathon Ranching Co., 701 P.2d 1106, 1110 (Utah 1985); Brown v. Carnes Corp., 611 P.2d 378, 380 (Utah 1980). The appellees also conceded these facts. (See R. 68 & 69).

C. All Requirements Are Met To Confer On The District Court Specific Personal Jurisdiction Over The Appellees.

The Utah Supreme Court has recently again reaffirmed that the finding of personal jurisdiction over a nonresident is governed, in addition to Utah's Long-Arm Statute, by meeting due process requirements as determined under federal jurisdictional analysis. Anderson v. American Society of Plastic Surgeons, 148 Utah Adv. Rep. 3 (November 15, 1990). See also Nova Mud Corp. v. Fletcher, 648 F.Supp. 1123 (D. Utah 1986). Specifically, conduct which is sufficient to invoke specific personal jurisdiction must include three features: (1) the activity must fall under at least one of the specifically enumerated statutory acts within Utah's Long-Arm Statute (see McGee v. International Life Insurance Co., 355 U.S. 220, 223 (1957)); (2) the controversy must arise out of the activity (see Hanson v. Denckla, 357 U.S. 235, 251 (1958)); and (3) the assertion of jurisdiction must not violate the notions of fair play and substantial justice (see International Shoe Co. v. Washington, 326 U.S. 310, 316 (1945)). See accord Bradford v. Nagle, 763 P.2d 791, 793 (Utah 1988). Each of these elements are fully satisfied in the present case.

1. The appellees have engaged in the transaction of business within Utah.

The first step in a long-arm jurisdictional analysis is to establish that the party's conduct falls within the purview of one

of the enumerated statutory provisions. In pertinent part, Utah law provides:

Any person . . . whether or not a citizen or resident of this state, who in person or through an agent does any of the following enumerated acts, submits himself, and if an individual, his personal representative, to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state as to any claim arising from:

(1) the transaction of any business within this state . . .

Utah Code Ann. §78-27-24(1) (1953, as amended) (Emphasis added).

What "transaction of business within this state" entails is defined in Section 78-27-23(2) of the Utah Code as "activities of a nonresident person, his agents, or representatives in this state which affect persons or businesses within the state of Utah." (Emphasis added). The Utah Supreme Court has given expansive construction to this definition, finding that a person may transact business within the state without a physical presence in Utah. See Synergetics v. Marathon Ranching Co., 701 P.2d 1106, 1110 (Utah 1985). This liberal construction finds similar support in the United States Supreme Court. See, e.g., McGee v. International Life Insurance Co., 355 U.S. 220, 223 (1957).

In the present case the appellees have for the past 18 years employed on an annually renewable basis the services of the appellant, a Utah partnership. (See Facts at ¶ 8). The appellees have had actual knowledge that during all of this time, the

appellant has been located in Utah. (See Facts at ¶¶ 5 & 8). The appellees have sent its account books and records to the appellant in Utah, have delivered payment for such services to the appellant in Utah and have had countless telephone conversations regarding the services it wished the appellant to perform and received counsel regarding its conduct of business from the appellant in Utah. (See Facts ¶¶ 9 & 10). Obviously, appellees continued use of appellant's services in Utah enabled them to reap the financial savings of paying Utah rates, rather than Southern California rates for these services. These activities evidences that the appellees conduct clearly has affected persons and businesses within the State of Utah, as required by statute. See also Nova Mud Corp. v. Fletcher, 648 F.Supp. 1123, 1126 (D. Utah 1986).

2. The appellant's claims arise out of the appellees' contacts in Utah.

The second step in a jurisdictional analysis is to determine whether the claims asserted arise out of the conduct with the forum state. See Hanson v. Denckla, 357 U.S. 235, 251-52 (1958). If the nexus between the claim and the party's conduct with the forum state can be established the "general" jurisdictional test of "doing business" within the state need not be met. Id.; Nova Mud Corp. v. Fletcher, supra, 648 F.Supp. at 1126. See also McGee

v. International Life Insurance Co., supra, 355 U.S. at 223 (1957).

In the instant case, the very claims asserted by the appellant arises from the connection the appellees have with Utah. Namely, the appellees' contact in Utah is their contracts with the appellant to do accounting work and business counselor for them. The instant dispute is over these very services. (See Facts at ¶ 11). Accordingly, the Hanson requirements are fully satisfied.

3. The assertion of jurisdiction is consistent with notions of fair play and substantial justice.

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