1990

Kamdar & Company v. Laray Company, Inc.; Raymond Boal; and James A. Boal Jr. : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

IX. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Each of the Defendants/Appellees asserts that the District Court of Utah County does not have jurisdiction over him for three (3) separate reasons. First, the long arm statute as enacted in the state of Utah has not been met. Second, each of the Defendants separate and individual contacts with the State of Utah are not sufficient to give this Court personal jurisdiction over the Defendants sufficient to meets the requirements of the due process of law clause as required by both the Utah state Constitution and the 14th Amendment to the U.S. Constitution. Finally, for the time periods in questions, the Plaintiff had a regular and ongoing business relationship within the state of California and the work relates to the corporate Defendants activities within the state of California and to require each of the Defendants to defend themselves in a foreign state under such circumstances is in violation of due process of law under both the state and federal constitutions.

X. ARGUMENT

A. Utah's Long arm statute does not confer general or personal jurisdiction over the Defendants.

UCA 78-27-22 sets forth Utah's declared public policy in adopting the state's Long-Arm Statute. The stated public policy clearly acknowledges that "any" contact with the state of Utah does not meet spirit or express wording of the statute. A plain reading of the statute requires as a condition precedent to its use that each of the Defendant's contacts with the state of Utah must be "...significant minimal contacts...".

Each of the Defendants claim that the District Courts of the state of Utah lack jurisdiction over them, and as a result, may not enter a money judgment them (either jointly or severally) based on a California commercial account. Utah's long-arm statute UCA 78-27-24 reads as follows:

"Any person..., who in person or through an agent does any of the following enumerated acts, submits himself, and if an individual, his personal representative, to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state as to any claim arising from:

1. The transaction of any business within this state;
2. Contracting to supply services or goods in this state;
3. The causing of any injury within this state whether tortious or be breach of warranty;
4. The ownership, use, or possession of any real estate situated in this state;
5. Contracting to insure any person, property or risk located within this state at the time of contracting;

6. With respect to actions of divorce and separate maintenance, the maintenance in this state of a matrimonial domicile at the time the claim arose or the commission in this state of the act giving rise to the claim."
(Emphasis added.)

In order to obtain personal jurisdiction over each of the Defendants, the Plaintiff must demonstrate that each Defendant satisfies one or more of the above statutory requirements.

UCA 78-27-26 sets forth an important limitation on the long-arm jurisdiction of the State of Utah. The section reads as follows:

"Only claims arising from acts enumerated herein may be asserted against a defendant in an action in which jurisdiction over him is based upon this act."

It is clear that only subsection (1) of Utah's long-arm statute (UCA 78-27-24) could possibly apply in this case. The individual Defendants and the corporate Defendant are not conducting their trade or business in the state of Utah. It is clear that the Plaintiff is conducting its own trade within the state of Utah. In sharp contrast, the corporate Defendant does not conduct any of its automotive trade or business in the state of Utah. The individual defendants as employees of the corporate defendant have no business contacts with Utah whatsoever. The Defendants do not own assets in Utah nor have they entered into an insurance arrangement with Utah citizens. Under these facts, the long-arm statute has not been met and the Plaintiff has failed to demonstrate the existence of "significant minimal contacts".

The state statute enumerates only six (6) situation by which the state of Utah can assert personal jurisdiction over non-resident Defendants. The statute declares that certain acts and certain conduct is sufficient to establish a legal "presence" in the state. The only applicable section for purposes of this case is the "transaction of business" test as found in subparagraph (1), and which is specifically circumscribed by the language of UCA 78-27-26.

The Plaintiff cannot meet the "transaction of business" test required by the statute as against each of the three (3) Defendants. This is because the Utah Supreme Court has consistently ruled that to satisfy this test each of the defendants must engage in a "substantial activity" with "some degree of continuity" in Utah. As illustrated by the Defendant's Affidavits, each of the Defendant's activities in Utah are not "substantial" and they certainly have not been "continuous". In fact, they have never occurred. In contrast, the professional business relationship arose while all of the parties were transacting their respective trade or business in the state of California. As a result the commercial agreement is governed by California law and the witnesses to the account or agreement all initially resided in California. From 1971 to 1974 all parties conducted all of their respective businesses in the state of California. Thereafter, the Plaintiff decided to relocate the Utah and continue its accounting operations here. Does this mean the

corporate Defendant must now be conducting its business in Utah too?

In Union Ski Company v. Union Plastics Corporation, 548 P.2d 1257 (Utah 1976), a Utah Plaintiff sued a California corporation for breach of a contract whereby the Defendant was to manufacture ski boots for the Utah Plaintiff. Defendant's general manager made at least four trips to Utah, and during one of these trips an oral understanding was reached between the parties within the State. This agreement was, with minor modification, subsequently reduced to writing and executed by the Defendant in California.

The Utah Supreme Court in affirming a lower Court's dismissal for lack of jurisdiction held that the Plaintiff had failed to show sufficient contacts by the Defendant in the State of Utah to support extra-territorial service of process and the resulting personal jurisdiction. The Court summarized the Utah law as follows:

"In harmony with the foregoing this court has consistently held that the transaction of business within the meaning of our statute requires that the Defendant has engaged in some substantial activity with some degree of continuity within this state. (547 P.2d at 1259.) (Emphasis added.)

Shortly after Union Ski, the Utah Supreme Court decided Cate Rental Company v. Whalen Company, 549 P.2d 707 (Utah 1976). The Plaintiff was a Utah corporation which had leased a piece of heavy construction equipment to the Defendant, a Montana corporation. The parties had transacted business on

a fairly regular basis for about ten years, the contacts with the state of Utah usually consisting of about five (5) telephone conversations a year between the two parties. The Utah Plaintiff would ship equipment to Montana from Salt Lake City and it would receive payment by mail. Based upon these facts and relying on Union Ski, supra, the Supreme Court affirmed the Trial Court's Order quashing service of process. The Court's ruling indicates that the Trial Court had no personal jurisdiction over the Defendant under the facts of that case.

In White v. Arthur Murray, Inc., 549 P.2d 439 (Utah 1976) the Utah Plaintiff brought an action for fraud against the Defendant corporation. The corporation's activities in Utah consisted of (1) supplying its franchisees with the instructional and advertizing materials; (2) regular audits, either on an annual or bi-annual basis; and (3) allowing the franchisees to use the corporate name. Apparently, the Defendant did no other business within the state of Utah. The Utah Supreme Court once again held that even these enumerated contacts were not sufficient to support personal jurisdiction over the Defendant. See also Transwestern Central Agency v. Morgan, 526 P.,2d 1186 (Utah 1974); Mack Financial Corporation v. Nevada Rentals, Inc. 529 P.2d 421 (Utah 1974). Chevron Chemical Company v. Mecham, 550 P.2d 182 (Utah 1976).

In the present case the three (3) named Defendants do not have the same type of contact with the state of Utah which the Defendants in the above cited cases had.

Even in those cases where the Utah Supreme Court has found personal jurisdiction over non-resident Defendants, it has explicitly stated that the basis for such jurisdiction must be clear. In Packaging Corporation of America v. Morris, 561 P.2d 680 (Utah 1977), a creditor brought an action against a non-resident Defendant to recover under a guarantee agreement. In an opinion authored by Justice Wilkins, the Court held that there was personal jurisdiction over the non-resident guarantor of the obligation. The Court was very careful, however, to set forth the basis for this jurisdiction as the opinion states:

"In Union Ski, supra, this Court stated that the meaning of our long-arm statute...requires that the Defendant has engaged in some substantial activity with some degree of continuity within this State . . . Defendant's agent was in Utah and performed continuous duties in Utah in overseeing the business of Hawkeye [the guaranteed party] and hence the Defendant's interests therein for most of 1971 and into 1972. The agent's duties and contacts were not sporadic and transitory. Certainly Hawkeye had local offices and property in Utah and the activities of the Defendant's agent at those offices constituted a substantial business presence in this state. (561 P.2d at 683).

In the Morris case, the Court specifically found that the Defendant was substantially engaged in an ongoing business in Utah. It thus had an economic presence in the state of Utah.

The Morris opinion relied on the earlier case of Hill v. Zale Corporation, 25 Ut. 2d 357, 482 P.2d 332 (Utah 1971), where the Utah Supreme Court stated the following seven (7) factors are generally determinative of whether or not a non-resident is "present" and "doing business" in the State of Utah:

- (1) Local offices, stores or outlets;
- (2) Personnel or employees located in Utah;
- (3) The solicitation of the general public within the State;
- (4) The presence of property including inventories, bank accounts, etc.;
- (5) The extent and frequency of business activities in the State;
- (6) Whether the claim asserted arose from the activities within Utah;
- (7) The relative hardship or convenience of the party in being required to litigate in Utah.

Obviously, under the authorities and criteria cited above, the individual Defendants are not, and were not, transacting business within the state of Utah. The California Corporate Defendant has not even had as many contacts with the state of Utah as the Defendants in Union Ski, supra, Cate, supra, and Arthur Murray, supra, who were able to avoid the assertion of jurisdiction. The seven (7) factors cited above have not been met even on a minimal basis in this case.

The contract for services which the present Plaintiff claims exist was entered into between California residents and it was the Plaintiff who then decided to relocate to Utah.

Such a unilateral act by the Plaintiff cannot be the basis for asserting extra-territorial personal jurisdiction over a nonresident arising out of a transaction whose basis and roots (and governing law) arose in the state of California.

The seven (7) factors are not substantially satisfied. The last factor raises significant constitutional issues that will be addressed below.

B. Jurisdiction over the Defendants do not satisfy due process of law under the 14th Amendment of the U.S. Constitution or the state's Constitution.

The due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution does not allow the Trial Courts of this state to assert extra-territorial personal jurisdiction over each of the three (3) the non-resident Defendants under the facts of this case. International Shoe v Washington 326 U.S. 310, 66 S. Ct. 154, 90 L.Ed 95 (1945); McGee v International 355 U.S. 220, 78 S. Ct. 199, 2 L.Ed 2d 223 (1957). The thrust of these decisions by the United States Supreme Court is that (notwithstanding the state's long arm statute) sufficient minimum contacts must exist within the foreign state in order for the state Court to assert personal jurisdiction over a non-resident Defendant. In this regard the identified minimum contacts must be substantial enough to justify the Defendants presence in a foreign state to defend a lawsuit. Absent some reasonable minimal contact with the foreign state (relating at least to the subject matter of the

litigation) our modern day concept of due process of law is violated. The U.S. Supreme Court has stated that this minimal level of contact within the state must be reasonable and just according to traditional concepts of fairness and equity. Hanson v Denckla 357 U.S. 235, 78 S. Ct. 1228, 2 L.Ed 1283 (1958). This requirement has not been met in this case. When the business relationship began and the agreement entered into all of the parties resided in the state of California. Therefore, each party could reasonably expect that the controlling law would be California law and the proper Court to address any grievance relating to the relationship was the state Courts of California. All of the parties have substantial and ongoing contacts with the state of California. The proper Court to adjudicate this controversy is located in Orange County California where the Plaintiff has at least one acknowledged customer (i.e. the corporate defendant) and where the other individual Defendants personally reside and where they supposedly entered into the "guarantee" agreement.

Whether sufficient minimum contacts exists for federal constitutional issues cannot be answered by applying a fixed formula or rule of thumb. This Court must determine whether it is fair and reasonable under the circumstances of this particular case that each of the Defendants should be required to defend themselves in the foreign state based on a transaction originally entered into in California. Being required to defend a law suit in a foreign state is usually

at a substantial cost and significant inconvenience to the Defendant. This strong-arm tactic is usually employed to drive up the cost of litigation so that settlement is based on the cost of the out-of-state litigation and not the merits of the controversy itself. In such a case the traditional concepts of justice and fair play is violated.

The Courts have adopted a few tests to determine whether or not it is reasonable to have the Defendants put to the inconvenience and expense of defending themselves in the Courts of a foreign state. One Court has determined that the trial Court should determine whether the defendant engaged in some act or conduct by which the Defendant may have said to have invoked the benefits and protections of the law of the state now seeking jurisdiction over the party. Gray v American 22 Ill. 2d 432, 176 NE. 2d 761 (1961); Consolidated v Shandon 348 F. 2d. 797 (CA-7 1967). In this case, the Defendants have never sought the protections or benefits of the laws of the State of Utah nor was that even contemplated in 1971 when all the parties resided in the state of California.

Under the Utah State Constitution Article 1 Section 7, the assertion of jurisdiction over these non-resident Defendants essentially deprives them of life, liberty, and property without due process of law. The Utah Supreme Court has long recognized that before a person can be subjected to specific control by the state of Utah (i.e. the taxation of

personal property) that person must have some recognized legal contact with the state of Utah. Untermeyer vs. The State Tax Commission 102 Ut. 214, 129 P.2d 881 (Utah 1942). The Untermeyer case involved the imposition of an excise tax on the ownership of stock of a domestic corporation. The stock was owned by a non-resident citizen who objected to the payment of the tax. The holding by the Utah Supreme Court which upheld the right of the state to tax the stock was based upon the premise (though artificial) that the stock of a Utah corporation has a sufficient tax situs within the state sufficient to justify the taxation of any subsequent transfer of that stock. Here the contact with the state of Utah is created by the voluntary purchase of stock of a corporation known to be subject to state corporate laws and state tax law. Therefore, it is reasonable to assume the local Courts could adjudicate any controversy and that the stockholders would be subject to taxation in Utah. In such a case the non-resident alien is not deprived of property without due process of law.

It is clear that "any" contact with the state of Utah is not sufficient to justify personal jurisdiction. The state statute requires (as required by the state's constitution) that the contacts be "significant".

C. Fairness and judicial economy as an element of due process of law requires that this case be heard in California

In determining whether or not "due process of law" is being afforded a nonresident Defendant and whether or not he

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